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Flanagan LLP;Thomas F. DeVinckd&sq., Malkerson Gunn Martin LLRnd Michael
Allen, Esg., Relman, Dane & Colfax PL|.Counsel foiRelatorFredrick Newell

David L. Lillehaug, 9., John W. Lundquist, Esq., Kevin C. Riach, Esq., and
LouseneM. Hoppe Esq. Fredrikson & Byron, PAcounsel for Defendant

INTRODUCTION
This matter is before the Court on Deferttiotion to DismisRelator’s
Complaint(Doc. N0.40). For the reasons set forth below, the Cgatsthe Motionto
Dismiss.
BACK GROUND
On May 19, 2009Relator Fredrick Newell (“Newelldr “Relator”) initiated this

qui tam actiorunder the False Glas Act (“FCA”), 31 U.S.C. 8§ 372%t seq, against the
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City of Saint Paul‘Defendant” orthe“City” ) on behalf of the government. (Doc. No. 1,
Compl.) The government declined to intervene on February 9, 2012. NDdg5.)
Relator then filed a Firggmended Complaint on March 12, 2012. (Doc. NQ./&3.
Compl)

Relator alleges that, from 20032009 the Citysubmitted fraudulent
certifications of Section 3 compliantetheU.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD”)in order to reeive Community Development Block Grants and
other federafunds. (Id. 11 £4.) Section 3 requires thagcipients of Section 3 funds
provide training and employment opportunities to Sectidte8identsto the greatest
extent feasible.”24 C.F.R. 8§ 1334(a) Relator specifically alleges thide Cityfailed
to comply with Section 3 requirements becateeCity did not (1)award sufficient
assistance to Section 3 Business Concerns and Resideaide@)ately oversdered
contractors to ensure cohgmce with Section 3; (3) implement notification procedures;
(4) create targedtraining programs; and (5) meet reporting requiremewm. Compl.
117)

Allegations ofthe Citys noncompliance with Section 3 requirements viese
made by James Milgain a complaint filed with HUD in 1982.Dpc. No. 46 Riach Aff.
11, Ex. A.) After HUD determined that the Citgas not complianthe Cityentered into
a Voluntary Compliance Agreement with HUD. (Riach Aff. £2,B.) From 1983 to

1994 Milsap, pined byother plaintiffs filed three lawsuits against several defendants

! James Milsap is an area contractor and Section 3 Resident mities® contracts

for the City were rejected. (Riach Aff. {5, Ex. ESJ93(c).)
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including the City allegingamong other thingsioncompliance with Section IRiach
Aff. 7, Ex. G at 2.)In the actiorfiled in December 1983Milsap alleged racial
discrimindion resulting in the exclusion of people of color from Héibded projects.
(Riach Aff. 1 4, Ex. D at-B.) In theaction filed in March 1986, Milsap alleged that
HUD had acceptetthe City’scertification of compliance and disbursed funds desipite
City’s apparent noncompliance and failure to keep required reéqfiach Aff. T 5,
Ex. E 1 96€13)(14), (18).) Intheactionfiled in July 1989 Milsapallegedthatthe City
failed to provide notice of opportunities and discriminated against theiffdaiy
refusing to accept their low bids(Riach Aff. § 10, Ex. J at-8.) Inthat casgthe City
filed a motionfor summary judgmergupported by the Affidavit of Jacqui Shoholm
which detailedhe City’s Section 3ompliance efforts. (Riach Aff. § &x. L) On
November 12, 1991, summary judgment was granted to the City. (Riachf Ex. L
at 25.)

In June 2000, Relator expressed interestarking as a contractor on
HUD-funded City projectsout was informedby a City representatiikatnew

contractors were not being addedhe City’s remodeling contractor lishd that HUD

2 In the 1983 action, the court granted summary judgment in faxbe @ity and

other defendants. (Riach Aff. 4, Ex. D at 8.)
3 The 1986 complaint was dismissedres judicatagrounds based on tle@itcome
of the1983case (Riach Aff.{ 4, Ex. D at 13.)

4 On October 18, 1990, several counts of the 1989 complaint were dismissed on
resjudicatagrounds and for failure to state a claim upon which retli@y be granted.
(Riach Aff. 1 7, Ex. G at 226.) The remaining counts includee ttlaim against the

City based upon 12 U.S.C. § 1701u for violating Section 3 requireméshis. (
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funds would be used to train existing gantors. Am. Compl. § 17(d)see alsdoc.
No. 49,Newell Decl.f121-23.) From 2001 to 2002, Relator worked on a projettdin
Section 3 Residents in lead remediation, but was unablade ftle trainees on any
projects‘due to lack of contracting opportuniti€s(Newell Decl.{{ 2526; see alscAm.
Compl. T 17(ajb).)

From 2001 to 2008, Relator inquired about contrgatipportunities and Section 3
compliancewith variousCity and HUD employees(Newell Decl.f{ 3:32.) During
thattime, Relator meEdward McDonald, a Citgmployeevho was terminated in 2003
(Id. 1 36.) In 2005, McDonald gave Relator a copy of ermal memoranduywhich
McDonald had writtemn 2003 documentinghe Citys noncompliance with Sectia3
requirements. I4. 1 39 Riach Aff. 17, Ex. Q(*McDonald Mem”).) The
memorandum had been released to the public in 2003 viarnedaita Data Pcéices Act
Request and was again disclosed when Relator read thentecord at a 2005 public
hearing. (Riach Aff. 1 18, Ex. R; Newell Decl. 1 39.)

In addition, Relator learned froanletter dated May 25, 20Q&om Assistant City
Attorney, Peter J. MCall, thatthe Cityhad not submittecequiredSection 3 Summary
Reports HUD Form60002)to HUD for the years 2001 through 2Q06Am. Compl.
117(f); see alsdNewell Decl.{ 42 Ex. Cat9-10) Also in May 2006, Réator was
informed byCity employeesttat neithethe Department of Human Rights nor the
Department of Planning and Economic DeveloproeiiectedSection 3 compliance data
from City projects (Am. Comp. T17(g); see alsdNewell Decl.{{ 4648, Ex. Cat 12)

After learningthis, Relator mad several requestis HUD under the Freedom of
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Information Act (“FOIA”) for informationregardingthe City’sSection 3 compliange
Relatorobtainedcopies of the City’s Applications for Federal Assistatcg was unable
to obtain Section 3 Summary Repatthey had not been submitted to HUNewell
Decl.| 49 Riach Aff. § 22, Ex. V)

On June 26, 2006, Relatatong with other plaintiffsbrought a civil action
againsthe Cityin the United States District Court for the District of Minnesota alleging
violations of Section 8'Nails Constructiof). (Am. Compl. { 37see alsiNewell Decl.
11 52-53 Riach Aff. 124, Ex. X.) Relator alleged specific violations such dasck ofa
certificationprocess for Section 3 BusinesgrCernsfailure to meet nuerical goals
lack ofacompliance prograpand failure to fileSection 3 Summary ReportgAm.
Compl. 1 39see alsdriach Aff. | 25, Ex. Y at-B.) Ultimately, he District Court
granted the City’s motion for summary judgment drginissed the actiooff lack of
standing. (Riach Aff. I 26, Ex. Z.)

In November 2007%he Cityreceived an audit report from the Hall Legal Team
that had been commissioned by the St. Paul City Council to assess thefiitys to
include minorities, womerand people witldisabilities in economic development
opportunitiesandwhich also evaluatettie City'slevel of compliance wittHUD-related
laws. (Riach Aff. § 28, Ex. BBat25-31) Thereport found that it was “not clear” that
the Citywas following HUD guidelineandrecommended that Section 3 Summary
Reports be made available to the communitgl. at 2331.) The report alsbighlighted
the requirementsf Section 3, including theumerical goal$éor employment of Section 3

Residentsthe inclusion of Section 3 infrmation in contracts, arile creation of records
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of good faith efforts and value of contracts awarded to SectimsiBesses(ld.) The
report was disclosed to the publicthe City'swebsite. (Riach Aff. 29, Ex. CC at 1.)

In April 2008, Relatorifed a complaint with HUDregardingthe Citys failure to
complywith Section 3 requirementsAifl. Compl. § 40see alsdNewell Decl.{ 59
Ex. E.) After receiving the complaint, HUD performed a commereview and
determined that the Cityasnoncomgiant with Section 3. Am. Compl. 1 41-42;see
alsoNewell Decl.y 71, Ex. I.) In February 2010, HUD anle Cityentered into a
Voluntary Compliance AgreementNéwell Decl.y 75 Ex. J.) The compliance
agreement expressly states that it does neaselthe City from any claims arising under
the FCA (Id.at5.)

In this actionRelator asserts a claim against the City for violations oF@8.
(Am. Compl. 11 4&0.) The Citynow moves to dismiss Relator's Amended Complaint
pursuant to Rules 12(d), 12(b)(6), and 9(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
(Doc. No. 40.)

DISCUSSION

l. L egal Standard

In deciding a motion to dismiss pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), a court assilime
facts in the complaint to be true and construes all reasonédrlerices from those facts
in the light most favorable to the complainaktorton v. Becker793 F.2d 185, 187 (8th
Cir. 1986). In doing so, however, a court need not accept as true wiadypsory
allegationsHanten v. Sch. Dist. of Riverview Gardet&3 F.3d 799, 805 (8th Cir.

1999), or legal conclusions drawn by the pleader from the facts alléfgesdcott v. City
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of Omaha901 F.2d 1486, 1488 (8th Cir. 1990). A court may consider the complaint,
matters of public record, orders, materials embraceteégomplaint, and exhibits
attached to the complaint in deciding a motion to dismiss under RUl¥@&2Porous
Media Corp. v. Pall Corp.186 F.3d 1077, 1079 (8th Cir. 1999).

To survive a motion to dismiss, a complaint must contain “enoughtéastte a
claim to relief that is plausible on its faceBell Atl. Corp. v. Twomb/y\650 U.S. 544,
545 (2007). Although a complaint need not contain “detaileddaatlegations,” it must
contain facts with enough specificity “to raise a right to relieivatthe speculative
level.” 1d. at 555. As the United States Supreme Court recentlyateitef|tjhreadbare
recitals of the elements of a cause of action, supported by nmelesary statements,”
will not pass muster und@wombly Ashcroftv. Igbal556 U.S. 662678(2009) (citing
Twombly 550 U.S. at 555). In sum, this standard “calls for enough facti@s®ma
reasonable expectation that discovery will reveal evidenggheo€laim].” Twombly 550
U.S. at 556.
. Motion to Dismiss

The Cityhasmovedto dismiss Relatorsimended Complaintarguing thathis
Court does not hayarisdiction under thé&CA overRelator’s clainbecausd is based
on publicly disclosed informatioaf which Relator is not an original source
Alternatively, the Qiy asserts thdRelatorhas failedo plead fraud with particularitand
that Relatohas failedo state a claim upon which relief may be grantsdertinghat

Section 3 does not give rise to an FCA claBecause the City is entitled to dismissal



dueto the Court’s lack of subjentatter jurisdiction, the Court need not reach the City’s
alternative arguments.

A. Public DisclosureBar

The City argues that the public disclosure bar prohibits Relatorgtosuinghis
FCA claim on behalf of the governmienThe City claims that, because several
documents publicly disclosed the fraud at issue, and because Relatartdmeslify as
an original source, the Court is divested of jurisdiction over thitema

31 U.S.C. 8§ 3730(e)(4), as it existed at the tirRedator filed hisoriginal complaint
in May 2009 provided:

(A) No court shall have jurisdiction over an action under this section based

upon the public disclosure of allegations or transactions in a atinginil,

or administrative hearing, in a congsgonal, administrative, or

Government Accounting Office report, hearing, audit, or invetsbigaor

from the news media, unless the action is brought by tieen&ty General

or the person bringing the action is an original sourceeoinflormation.

(B) For purposes of this paragraph, “original source” means an individual

who has direct and independent knowledge of the informatiavhmi the

allegations are based and has voluntarily provided the information to the

Government before filing an action werdhis section which is based on the

information.

31 U.S.C. § 3730(e)(4) (2006) (amended 2G1Bpr purposes of the present motion, the

Court consiérs the statute as it existed at the time this action was initiate@9n 36e,

> 31 U.S.C. § 3730(e)(4), as amended in 2010, now provides:
(A) The court shall dismiss an action or claim under this sectiorgsinle
opposed by the Govermamt, if substantially the same allegations or
transactions as alleged in the action or claim were publiotyodied-
() in a Federal criminal, civil, or administrative hearing in which the
Government or its agent is a party;
(Footnote Continued on Next Page)
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e.g, United States»erel. Estate of Cunningham v. Millennium Labs. of (Gil.

No. 09-122093LT, 2012 WL 259572at *3 (D. Mass. Jan. 30, 2012), citiMullan v.
Torrance 22 U.S. 537, 539 (1824t is quite clear, that the jurisdiction of the Courts
depends upon the $teof things at the time of the action brought . . . .”).

A court must consider three questions when determimh@gher a particular
guitam action under the FCA is barred as a result of public disclosi(i@$iave
allegations made by the relator béeublicly disclosed’ before the qui tam suit was
brought? (2) If so, is the qui tam suit ‘based upon’ the public discloandx3) If so,
was the relator an ‘original source’ of the informatiorwdnich the allegations were
based?”Minnesota Ass’n of Nge Anesthetists v. Allina Health Sys. Cp276 F.3d
1032, 1042 (8th Cir. 2002)f the Court answers either of the first two questions in the
negative, or the third question in the affirmative, the Court has jurisdmtenthe

action. Id.

(Footnote Continued From Previous Page)
(i) in a congressional, @&ernment Accountability Office, or other Federal
report, hearing, audit, or investigation; or
(i) from the news media, unless . . . the person bringing the astam
original source of the information.
(B) For purposes of this paragraph, “origisalurce” means an individual
who either (i) prior to a public disclosure under subsection (e)(4H8a),
voluntarily disclosed to the Government the information on which
allegations or transactions in a claim are based, or 3\kbD has
knowledge thats independent of and materially adds to the publicly
disclosed allegations or transactions, and who has voluntarily praweled
information to the Government before filing an action under thisosec
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, Pub. &. NL1-148, 8 10104(j)(2), 124
Stat. 119, 901 (2010) (codified as amended at 31 U.S.C. § 3730(e)(4) (Supp. 2010)
(effective July 22, 2010)).



1. Public Disclosures

In order to bar an FCA claim, the public disclosure mexgtal “the critical
elements of the fraudulent transaction themselvesited States ex rel. Hixson v.
Health Mgmt. Sys., Inc613 F.3d 1186, 1188 (8th Cir. 2018¢e also Minn. Ass'of
Nurse Anesthetist276 F.3d at 1044 (“[A] public disclosure must reveal both the true
state of facts and that the defendant represented theddetsomething other than what
they were’). Additionally, the relator’s allegations must be “based upon” the public
disclosure.Minn. Ass’n of Nurse Anesthetis?36 F.3d at 1042'‘Based upon” means
the allegations aresupported b¥y or arethe same athe public disclosureegardless of
where the relator obtained his informatidd. at 1045, 104 T T]he phrase ‘based upon’
is properly understood to mean ‘supportedycitation omitted) The City assertand
the Court agree#hat the allegations made by Relator in this case were “publicly
disclosed” before the qui tam suit was filed #mat Relator’'s allegations in this case
were “based upon” the public disclosures.

a. Milsap HUD Complaint and L awsuits

The Cityidentifiesa HUD complainimade by James Milsamd the resulting
Voluntary Compliance Agreement &g public documents upon which Relatas
based this action(Riach Aff. 1 2, Exs. AB.) Moreoverthe Cityidentifiesthree
lawsuits filed by Milsap alleging noncompliance with Secti@sgrior civil litigation
containingsimilar allegation®n which Relator’s allegations are basé@iach Aff.

194-12 Exs.D-L.)

10



“Substantially similar allegations” from prior litigation fall within the public
disclosure barUnited States ex rel. Feldstein v. Organon,,|I864 F. App’x 738,

74142 (3d Cir. 2010). The FCA is designed to emagawhistleblowers with inside
knowledge to report fraud, rather than to allow windfalls to relatbosrepeat
allegations from previous litigatiorHays v. Hoffma825 F.3d 982, 987 (8th Cir. 2003
When thecase before a cowatleges new fraudulent traactions that are substantially
similar to the transactions previously disclosed, the prior allegdtamsot be
reanimated simply by complaining that defendants perforheeddame fraudulent acts in
succeeding years United States ex rel. Rosales w=.31ous. Auth.173 F.Supp. 2d

987, 997 (N.DCal. 2001).

While all threeMilsap lawsuitput somdocus on racial discrimination, the heart
of the allegationgn each suitvas that the City failed to comply with Section 3 while
continuing to accept HUPaymentghat were conditioned on complianc@iach Aff.

16 Ex Fat10-11.) The Milsap lawsuits are public disclosubesause the allegations
were made public in a civil hearinggee31 U.S.C. § 3730(e)(4)(A). While the
allegations in the Milsamlvsuits span from 1982 to 19%hd Relator’s claim covers the
period of time from 2003 to 2009, the underlying assertion that theafigpted HUD
funds andailed to comply with Section 3 requirementsigstantially similar (Am.
Compl. 1124.) Inessence, Relator complaining thathe Cityperformed the same
fraudulent acts in succeeding years; therefbtisap’s allegations publicly disclosed

Relator’s qui tam claimSeeRosales173 F. Supp. 2d at 997.
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Relator’'s allegationare alsd’based upn” the Milsaplitigation becaus®&elator
makes allegations that dreupported by Milsap’s claims Specifically, Milsap allegk
thatthe City discriminated against the plaintiffs in the 1986 ac¢flajy wilfully [sic] and
unlawfully certifying, as a aadition precedent to the award of Federal funds, that the
City of St. Paul had Equal Housing, [sic] and Equal Employment Progngplece.”
(Riach Aff. 6, Ex. F at 10.) Relator similarly alleges tHd}hrough . . . false
certifications, and througtiaims for payment or applications for funding which falsely
presented the City as being in compliance with its obligations und&o%8, the City
improperly received more than $62 million in federal funds.” (Am. glof4.)
Additionally, Milsap alkged that the City “wilfully [sic] fail[ed] to examine and enforce
the mandatory provisions and obligations which govern the use ofdleeafFé&inds,”
while Relator alleges that “the City knowingly failed and refusediogy with
Section3” and listsseveralexamples of Section 3 requiremefasfederal funds thahe

City hasfailed to meef (Riach Aff. 6, Ex. F at 7; Am. Compl. § 17.) ThRelator's

Relator'sAmendedComplaint alleges that:

a.The City has not, to the greatest extent feasible, awardgticaest

percentage of Section 3 covered assistance to Section 3 Busimesss

or Section 3 Residents nor has the City, to the greatest extent feasible,

Section 3’s “safe harbor” requirements for the hiring of $ac3i

Residents.

b. The City has notp the greatest extent feasible, exercised oversight over

those contractors hired with Section 3 HUD funds to ensure that, to the

greatest extent feasible, those contractors provide tragmgloyment and

contracting opportunities to Section 3 Residams Section 3 Business

Concerns.

c. The City has not implemented procedures designed to notify Section 3

Residents about training and employment opportunities generated by

(Footnote Continued on Next Page)
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allegations in this respect were “publicly disclosed” before he irtiiie actiorand
were“based upcohthe Milsap public disclosures.
b. TheMcDonald Memorandum

Edward McDonald’'2003internal memorandum detailée Citys
noncompliance with SectioneBd recommended an aufdilowed bythe
implementation of training and proceduie®rder for tle Cityto become compliant
(McDonald Memat 89.) The report was disclosed publicly vi2@03Minnesota Data
Practies Act request bihe Star Tribune andeadat a2005 publichearingby Relator
(Riach Aff. 1 1820, Exs. RT; Newell Decl.yf 32) Consequently, the McDonald
memorandum was publicly disclosed before Relatbatedthis qui tamaction

Moreover,Relator’s allegations afdased updhthe McDonaldnmemorandum

because his allegations are supported by the stateromtdsned withinthe

(Footnote Continued From Previous Page)
Section 3 covered assistance and Section 3 Business Coalseuts
contracting oppdunities generated by Section 3 covered assistance.
d. The City has not instituted training programs aimed specifically at
low-income and vernow income residents as required by Section 3.
e. The City has not met its reporting requirements under Sectl@mtduse
the City failed to sufficiently notify contractors of Section 3 requegt®
and failed to inform all units of the City of Section 3 Requireme&te24
C.F.R. §135.32.
f. The City has failed to submit an annual report summarizing its Sé&ction
activity (HUD form 60002) to the Assistant Secretary of HUD as redui
by Section 3.See24 C.F.R. § 135.90(e).
g. The City has failed to document actions taken to comply with the
requirements of 24 CFR Part 135, the results of those actions taken and
impediments to complianc&see?4 C.F.R. 8 135.32(e).

(Am. Compl. 1 17.)
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memorandum.McDonald specifically indicatetthat there is “no special provision with
any of the developments using federal funds directly or indirectlyagthe provision
of section 3’ (McDonald Mem at 8.) McDonaldfurther statel that partnerstiave yet
to place one of their recruited employees onarjyhe City’s] fund assisted housing
development projects” and that no Section 3 reports appear taitebe/for the
projects. Id.) Relator relies on this information to allege that the @i not, to the
greatest extent feasible, exercised oversight over thosacims hired with Section 3
HUD funds to ensure that, to the greatest extent feasible, tiomsractors provide
training, employment and contracting opportunities to SectResddents and Section 3
Business ConcerristAm. Compl. § 17(b).) Relator further allegbatthe City“has
failed to sufficiently notify contractors of Section 3 requiremetdscreate employment
opportunities for Section 3 Residenf&m. Compl. 1 1{).) Finally, Relator alleges
thatthe City failed‘to submit an annual report summarizing its Section 3 acfiaty
required bySection 3 (Am. Compl. § 1#).) Thus,the McDonald memorandum
constitutes prior public disclosure, afRkelator’'s allegtions arébased updhthe
McDonald nemorandum.
C. Nails Construction Litigation

In his 2006lawsuit,Nails Constr. Co. v. City of Saint Pafelator alleged that

the Citywas “responsible pursuant to federal law for the administrati@ection 3

funds inconformity with federal law” and refusedd¢omply with the requirements of

! All contracts covered b8ection 3 must contamertainform language specifying

the parties’ obligations under Section 3. 24 C.F.R. § 135.38.
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Section 3 (Riach Aff.q 24 Ex. X ] 3638.) Like the Milsap allegations, tieadings
in the Nails Constr. Coactionconstitute public disclosures of Relator’'s claims is thi
suitbecause thellegations wer@reviouslydisclosed in the course of a public civil
hearing See31 U.S.C. § 3730(e)(4)(A).

Relator’s allegations arso“based updhthe Nails Constr. Coallegations
because both complaints contain essentiadlysdime allegationggardingthe City’s
failure to comply with Section 3 requirements. Nals Constr. Cocomplaint allegd
that the City has not‘awarded a sufficient percentage of HUD contracts to Section 3
Business Concerns“exercised oversighaver those contractors hired with HUD fungs”
“met its reporting requirements‘met its obligation to notify Section 3 Residents about
training and/or employment opportunitie&tain[ed] and employ[ed] Section 3
Residents;“provide[d] preference to S&aon 3 Residents” or SectionBusiness
Concernsor filed Section 3 Summary Repart@Riach Aff. § 24, Ex. X I 37.) Relator
now alleges thathe City has not “awarded a sufficient percentage of Section 3 covered
assistance to Section 3 Business Camxer Section 3 Resideniséxercised oversight
over those contractors hired with Section 3 HUD funtsiplemented procedures
designed to notify Section 3 Residents about training and employmentuopiest;
“instituted training programs aimed spécddly at lowincome and venow income
residents; “met its reporting requirementsdr “submit[ted] an annual report . . .{B
form 60002).” (Am. Compl. 17.) These allegations are virtually identical to those

articulatedn his previous suiin which the City’s motion for summary judgment was
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granted. (Riach Aff. § 26, Ex. Z at0.) Thus, theNails Constr. Calitigationincluded
prior public disclosursupon whichRelator’'s currenallegations arbased
d. FOI A Requests

As part of his investigatiointothe Citys compliance with 8ction 3 requirements
prior to theNails Constr. Colawsuitin 2006 Relator made several FOIA requésts
HUD for compliancerelateddocumentation.(Riach Aff. § 22 Ex. V.) A response to a
FOIA requestonstitutsa“report and may fallwithin the public disclosure bagven if
his ownpersonaexperiencer suspicion causete relator to begitheinvestigation
Schindler Elevator Corp. v. United States ex rel. Ki&l S.Ct. 1885, 18934 (2011).

Relator’s allgations arésupported by the requestedecords, namely the
Applications for Federal Assistanaad the lack oSection 3 Summary Reportk each
Application for FederaAssistance, the City certifigtat “[i]t will comply with section 3
of the Housingand Urban Development Act of 1968, and implementing regulations at 24
CFR Part 135.” (Newell Decl. 1 84, Ex. K at 5, Ex. L at 8,at 6, Ex. N at 5.)Such
documents “supportRelators allegatiorthat“the City’s certifications were knowingly
false”and “falsely presented the City as being in compliance” aaig‘thjad HUD not
received the City’s certification that it would comply with Section 3, Hufuld not
have provided the City with . . . funds covebydSection 3.” $eeAm. Compl. T, 35)
FurthermoreHUD'’s inability to provide Relator witltopies of theequeste@ection 3
SummaryReports “supportsRelator’s allegation that “[t]he city has failed to submit an

annual report summarizing its Section 3 activity (HUD form 6000&38eAm. Compl.
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91 17(f)) Thus, the FOIA requesaiblicly disclosedrRelator’s allegationsandRelator’s
allegations arébased updnthe FOIA requests.
2. Original Source

The public disclosure bar may be avoided if Relator is an original esotithe
informaion on which the allegations are basd&a qualify as an original source, “the
relator’'s knowledge of the information must be (1) direct and (2pewident, and (3) the
relator must have voluntarily provided the information to the Governméortetiding
suit.” Minn. Ass’n of Nurse Anesthetis?36 F.3dcat 104243. The FCA"seeks to
encouragg@ersons with firshand knowledge of fraudulent misconduct . . . or those who
areeitherclose observers or otherwise involved in the fraudulent activity to come
forward” United States ex rel. Barth v. Ridgedale Elec., ¥¢.F.3d 699, 703 (8th Cir.
1995) (internal citationand quotationsmitted) seeUnited States ex rel. Kinney v.
Stoltz 327 F.3d 671, 674 (8th Cir. 2003). An individual who receives skam
information from a person having direct knowledge of the asskeatedidoes not have
direct knowledge himselfBarth, 44 F.3d at 703. Aetator needhot have personal
knowledge of all of the elements of a claimweverto qualify as an originadource.
Minn. Ass’n of Nurse Anesthetis?36 F.3d at 1050Still, collecting information from a
variety of sources anmgcognizing the legal significancd the informationdoes not
gualify arelator as an original source if the information was albElto anyone who
chose to look for it.United States ex rel. Arliscrimination Center of Metro N.Y ., Inc.
v. Westchester Cn{y95 F. Supp. 2d 375, 380 (S.D.N.Y. 20@€k Schindler Elevator

Corp,, 131 S. Ct. at 1894.
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While Relator did persoriglohtain someinformationregardingthe Citys
Section3 program, the information on which Relator basefaigd claimwasacquired
seconehand,from other sources amior public disclosuresTheessential elements of
Relator'sFCA claim can be found inhe documents created,land the statements, of
City employeegncluding theletter from Assistant City Attorney Pet&mMcCall, the
City's Applications for Federal Assistance, and the McDonadorandum (Newell
Decl.1134, 84 Exs. C at 10& K-N; McDonald Mem at 89.) Relatofs continued
complaintsto City and HUD employees regarding the City’s Section 3tjpes
notwithstanding (Newell Decl.f{31-34 59), it wasultimatelyHUD, pursuant ta 2009
compliance revieweonducted byts Office of Far Housing and Equal Opportunjtphat
determined that the City had failemlcompl with Section 3 requirementslewell Decl.
1 71, Ex. I). Relator's own contributions are limited: teelayingpublicinformation to
HUD and City employee® instigateinvestigationsand recognizinghe alleged fraud
after compiling information gathered from othe(SeeNewell Decl. 9 34& 59, Exs. C
& E.) Suchcontributionsdo not qualify him as an original source because the
information was available to anyone whasé to look for it.

Relator isnot the “original source” of any of the public disclosurpsn whichhis
FCA claimis based Relatodoesnot have direct or independent kredge of the
Milsap allegations. Insteabe relies upon informatigmevealed dring the course of
litigation, that wasobtainedrom City employees with direct knowledge of the alleged
fraud (such as the Shoholmfiidavit detailing the City’s Section 3 compliance effyrts

Nor doesRelator have direct or independent knowledge @irtformation contained
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within the McDonald remorandum because that documant the information it
contains wasacquiredseconehand from McDonald aftdvicDonaldevaluatedhe City’s
level of Section Zompliance.In addition, Relator does not haveetdit or independent
knowledge of the allegations in th&ils Constr. Cocase because those allegations are
also based upon informatidtelatorobtained secontdand from City and HUD
employees with direct knowledge of the alleged frauginally, Relatordoes not have
direct or independent knowledge of the responshis fOIA requests because the
documents requested were generated by thea@ihHUDandwereonly made available
to Relator via public disclosure. Thus, Relator is not an “originalcedof any of the
informationon whichRelator’s allegationare based

For the above reasaitee Court concludes th&elator’'s allegations were
“publicly discloset prior to this suit, his allegations wetased updnthe prior public
disclosures, and Ralor was not ahoriginal sourcé of the pertinentinformation. Thus,
the public disclosure bar prohibRelator’'s FCA clainfrom proceeding, and this Court
is divested of jurisdiction pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3730(e)tnsequently, the Court

grants he City’s motion to dismiss

8 Notably, theNails Constr. Cocourt concluded that neither Relator nor his
business had “experienced an injury in fact that [was] faailyeable to the City”
resulting from the City’s alleged violations of Section 3, and thusisksd the
complaint for lack of standing. (Riach Aff.26, Ex. Z at %.)

o In its notice of election to decline intervention, the Government ahkedourt to

seek the written consent of the Attorney General befoirggroh a request by the City or
Relator to dismiss this action. (Doc. No. 35, cit¥ddJ.S.C. § 3730(b)(1).) The Court
notes, however, that “the Attorney Genes&lbonsent is required only where the relator
(Footnote Continued on Next Page)
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ORDER

Based upon the foregoin] ISHEREBY ORDERED that

1. Defendant’dMotion to DismissRelator's Complain{Doc. No.[40]) is
GRANTED.

2. Relator’s First Amended Complaint (Doc. No. [38]DisSM | SSED
WITH PREJUDICE.

LET JUDGMENT BE ENTERED ACCORDINGLY.
Dated: July20, 2012 s/Donovan W. Frank

DONOVAN W. FRANK
United States District Judge

(Footnote Continued From Previous Page)

seeks a voluntary dismissal. ” United States ex rel. Shaver v. Lucas W. C@37
F.3d 932, 934 (8th Cir. 200{not requirng the Attorney General’'s consent where the
district courigraned the defendant'snotion to dismiss for failure to state a claim).
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